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CORPORATE INFORMATION

The registered office of the Company is located at Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

During the year, the Group was principally engaged in the
design, manufacture and sale of a wide range of toys. There
were no significant changes in the nature of the Group's
principal activities during the year.

Vision Century Group Limited (“Vision Century”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, is the immediate
holding company of the Company. In the opinion of the
directors, the ultimate holding company of the Company is

Huang Group (BVI) Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands which is ultimately held by a discretionary

trust.

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
STATEMENTS OF STANDARD ACCOUNTING PRACTICE

The following new and revised Hong Kong Statements of
Standard Accounting Practice (“SSAPs") are effective for the
first time for the current year's financial statements:

*  SSAP 1 (Revised):
S EBENE 1R (BEFT)

*  SSAP 11 (Revised):
B EBENE 115 (KIEF])

*  SSAP 15 (Revised):
B EBENE 155 (K&

0 SSAP 34:
@ =TI B 345

These SSAPs prescribe new accounting measurement and
disclosure practices. The major effects on the Group's
accounting policies and on the amounts disclosed in these
financial statements of these SSAPs are summarised as follows:
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HAGZEEEEMRAT XIN CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RRMNE

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
STATEMENTS OF STANDARD ACCOUNTING PRACTICE
(Continued)

SSAP 1 prescribes the basis for the presentation of financial
statements and sets out guidelines for their structure and
minimum requirements for the content thereof. The principal
impact of the revision of this SSAP is that a consolidated
statement of changes in equity is now presented on page 30
of the financial statements in place of the consolidated
statement of recognised gains and losses that was previously
required and in place of the Group's reserves note.

SSAP 11 prescribes the basis for the translation of foreign
currency transactions and financial statements. The principal
impact of the revision to this SSAP on the consolidated financial
statements is that the profit and loss accounts of overseas
subsidiaries are now translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year, whereas
previously they were translated at the exchange rates ruling as
at the balance sheet date. The adoption of the revised
SSAP 11 has had no material effect on the financial statements.

SSAP 15 prescribes the revised format for the cash flow
statement. The principal impact of the revision of this SSAP is
that the consolidated cash flow statement now presents cash
flows under three headings, cash flows from operating, investing
and financing activities, rather than the five headings previously
required. In addition, cash flows from overseas subsidiaries
arising during the year are now translated to Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates as at the dates of the transactions, or at
an approximation thereto, whereas previously they were
translated at the exchange rates as at the balance sheet date,
and the definition of cash equivalents for the purpose of the
consolidated cash flow statement has been revised. Further
details of these changes and the prior year adjustments that
have resulted from them are included in the accounting policies
for "Cash and cash equivalents” in note 5 and in note 29(a)
to the financial statements.
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IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
STATEMENTS OF STANDARD ACCOUNTING PRACTICE
(Continued)

SSAP 34 prescribes the recognition and measurement criteria
to apply to employee benefits, together with the required
disclosures in respect thereof. The adoption of this SSAP has
resulted in no material change to the previously adopted
accounting treatments for employee benefits. In addition,
disclosures are now required in respect of the Company's
share option schemes, as detailed in note 27 to the financial
statements. These share option scheme disclosures are similar
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules")
disclosures previously included in the Report of the Directors,
which are now required to be included in the notes to the
financial statements as a consequence of the adoption of this
SSAP.
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HAGZEEEEMRAT XIN CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RRMNE

3. RESTRUCTURING, OPEN OFFER AND CAPITAL
REORGANISATION

During the year, the Group (a) implemented a restructuring,
involving a subscription of new shares of the Company and
the entering into of various compromise agreements with the
Group's bankers and creditors; (b) effected an open offer; and
(c) undertook a capital reorganisation, as further explained
below:

(a) Restructuring

During the year, the Group entered into a subscription
agreement with Vision Century and various compromise
agreements with the Group’s Hong Kong bankers (the
“Bank Group”) and certain creditors of the Group related
to a restructuring plan (the “Restructuring”). Summary
particulars of the Restructuring are set out below:

(i) Subscription agreement with Vision Century

On 1 February 2002, the Company entered into a
subscription agreement for the subscription of
3,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at
par by Vision Century. The subscription agreement
was completed on 16 May 2002. Upon completion
of the subscription agreement, the Company received
cash proceeds of HK$30,000,000, before related
expenses, (note 26(iii)).
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3. RESTRUCTURING, OPEN OFFER AND CAPITAL
REORGANISATION (Continued)

(a) Restructuring (Continued)

(i) Compromise agreement with the Bank Group

Pursuant to a bank compromise agreement (the
“Bank Compromise Agreement”) entered into by the
Group and the Bank Group on 1 February 2002, the
Bank Group released and discharged the Group from
all of its obligations and liabilities in respect of its
bank borrowings advanced by the Bank Group
(including principal and interest) outstanding as at
the completion date of the Bank Compromise
Agreement and released the guarantees given by
the Group in favour of the Bank Group, subject to
and on the terms and conditions stated therein. In
consideration of this, the Bank Group (i) received a
payment in cash by the Company of approximately
HK$20,000,000; and (ii) was issued eight convertible
bonds with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$6,500,000 repayable by three equal annual
instalments over three years by the Company. The
first instalment was settled by the Company on 16
May 2003. On the basis of the total borrowings owed
by the Group to the Bank Group of approximately
HK$103,105,000 (including accrued bank interest of
HK$14,235,000), an aggregate amount of
approximately HK$76,605,000 of the bank
indebtedness has been waived by the Bank Group.

In addition, the Bank Group withdrew their legal
proceedings against the Group to demand for
immediate repayment of overdue borrowings and
interest thereon, and their winding-up petitions against
the Group.

3.

A AHBRERELEA (B)

(a)

B4 (#)
(i) BREFTY 2 Z =

BEAEFHEFEAN ST _F_7—
BRIz 2 R1TZ W= ([RITZ 00
&) - REER IRITE % B K R
BRREEASEBRERRERNSHAKRE
BRAEBE(BEASRAMB) ZERER
BE URBBRAEBNURBAZEA
FiER 2 R - HEEAXBZAE KGR
RAGHRTR - BE R - REIE ()
KRR A AR € X 2 5B 420,000,000
B RMNERRBEIT N \DASES
56,500,000 L 2 AJ R ESH - AT R
“EREHL—HERFEERE  caHEA
ARABIR-_ZTZT=FRA+~HEE-
BREASBEEAXABEZHBEED
103,105,000 7t (B FEEF R 1T 5 B
14,235,000 7T) AE%E - (REE#RE 2
R1TIE BB R4 /76,605,000 T °

BEAN - SR EBE R F B A EEER(E
BB EREF B M EEZERF
BUARBREERANEEBFRZZ2H -

ANNUAL REPORT 2003 F#



HAGZEEEEMRAT XIN CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B3 3R o& M AR

3/ March 2003 Z=—ZFEE=fF=HF=+—H

3. RESTRUCTURING, OPEN OFFER AND CAPITAL 3. EMfl - PHARERELREML(B)
REORGANISATION (Continued)

(@) Restructuring (Continued) (a) E# (&)

(i) Compromise agreement with the trade and other (i) MBS R EMEREAT L2 ZHiHE

creditors

The Group entered into a compromise agreement
with an entity (the “PRC Entity") owned by the local
government in Mainland China in respect of the
settlement of a claim of approximately
HK$23,038,000 by way of (i) a cash payment by
the Company of approximately HK$2,056,000; and
(i) the issue by the Company of a convertible note
on or before 31 July 2002 in the principal amount
of HK$16,000,000 repayable on the second
anniversary of its issuance. On the basis of the total
amount payable of H$23,038,000, an aggregate
amount of approximately HK$4,982,000 has been
waived by the PRC Entity.

In addition, the Group entered into compromise
agreements with various creditors who are primarily
trade and other creditors of the Group to settle
approximately HK$11,886,000 in aggregate owed by
the Group to those creditors by way of (i) cash
payments by the Group of HK$880,000; and (ii) the
issue by the Company of 1,066,440,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each at HK$0.010 to HK$0.015
per share for a total consideration of HK$11,006,000.
The excess consideration for the issue of the
Company's shares above over the nominal value of
the shares issued, amounting to approximately
HK$342,000, has been credited to the share
premium account.

ANNUAL REPORT 2003 F#

AEBE-BAPRLTRFES 2
E([PEME]D LY B AA7A
BR_ZEE_FtA=+—HHZA
() AR B Z IR € 42,056,000 7T : &
(i) %17 A € 58 4 16,000,000/ 7T 2 A #2
BEERBETRE_FEE)2HNE
E#23,038,000TTZHE - IREMA
%23,038,0008 LAt E - PRI EER
2K 54,982,000/ 7T °

BEoN - REBHEZUEEA (EEALRE
BB REMEEN) TLZRHE
NENARBLEZERZEBERAZCES
H#711,886,0008 T - BEARA (A
EE AR £ % 14880,000%8 7T : K(i)A
ARIAEK0.01020.015% 7T 2 (B 1% 3%
17 1,066,440,0000% B AXE{E0.01 BT 2
E@AY - BB A11,006,00087T ° £
MARNBETHRNH 2 RKEBBE BETR
MHEEBEZZ5HA342,0008 T Jhat
ARG BB -



31 March 2003

3,

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B k& M AR

—EE=F=ZH=1-H

RESTRUCTURING, OPEN OFFER AND CAPITAL

REORGANISATION (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Restructuring (Continued)

Upon completion of the compromise agreements with
the Bank Group and creditors, the Group's indebtedness
was reduced by HK$115,529,000 by way of waivers of
HK$81,587,000, capitalisation of HK$11,006,000 and cash
settlement of HK$22,936,000. The amounts of debts
waived, net of related restructuring expenses of
HK$4,556,000, has been credited to the profit and loss
account of the Group for the year.

On 13 May 2002, the Restructuring was approved by the
Company's shareholders at a special general meeting. The
subscription agreement with Vision Century and the
compromise agreements with the Bank Group, and trade
and other creditors became unconditional and were
completed during the year.

Open offer

Immediately after the completion of the Restructuring,
the Company effected an open offer with assured
allotments of three offer shares for every two shares of
HK$0.01 each in the Company held by the shareholders
whose names appeared on the register of members of
the Company on 13 May 2002.

The open offer was completed on 29 May 2002 and
resulted in the issue of 4,025,905,140 new ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company at a price of
HK$0.01 per offer share. The Company received cash
proceeds of approximately HK$40,259,000, before the
related open offer expenses, for the issue of shares under
the open offer.

3.
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3. RESTRUCTURING, OPEN OFFER AND CAPITAL 3. EMfl - PHARERELREML(B)

REORGANISATION (Continued)
EXEA4

(c) Capital reorganisation (c)

On 5 December 2002, the Company proposed to effect
a capital reorganisation scheme, which involved a
consolidation of every fifty issued and unissued shares of
HK$0.01 each into one consolidated share of HK$0.50
each and the reduction of the par value of the ordinary
share capital of the Company from HK$0.50 each to
HK$0.01 each and the cancellation of the share premium
account of the Company. The capital reorgnisation scheme
was approved by the Company's shareholders on 30
December 2002 at a special general meeting.

On 30 December 2002, the capital reorganisation scheme
became effective. Further details of the capital
reorganisation are set out in note 26(vi).
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4. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

As at 31 March 2003, the Group had significant net current
liabilities and a deficiency in assets of approximately
HK$91,336,000 and HK$11,014,000, respectively. The Group
also incurred a loss from operating activities of HK$33,383,000
and reported a net cash outflow from operating activities of
HK$33,239,000 for the year ended 31 March 2003.

In order to strengthen the capital base of the Group and to
improve the Group's financial position, immediate liquidity and
cash flow and otherwise to sustain the Group as a going
concern, the directors of the Company (the “Directors”) have
adopted the following measures:

(a) The Directors successfully negotiated to effect an open
offer with assured allotments of four offer shares for every
one shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company held by the
shareholders whose names appeared on the register of
members of the Company on 29 August 2003.

The open offer is expected to be completed on 23
September 2003 and will result in the issue of a minimum
of 862,102,552 new ordinary shares (assuming no
granting or exercise of convertible note and bonds (note
24) of the Company are exercised before the open offer)
and a maximum of 1,024,769,216 new ordinary shares
(assuming full conversion of the outstanding convertible
note and bonds before the open offer), of HK$0.01 each
in the Company at a price of HK$0.06 per offer share
based on the number of issued shares of 215,525,638
as at 31 March 2003. Upon completion of the open
offer, cash proceeds of a minimum of approximately
HK$51,726,000 and a maximum of HK$61,486,000,
before the related open offer expenses, will be received
by the Company.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RRMNE

4. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued)

(b)

Vision Century has irrevocably undertaken to subscribe
for the shares offered under the open offer and is entitled
to apply on an assured basis. Based on the shareholding
position of Vision Century in the Company of 156,419,190
shares as at 31 March 2003, Vision Century will apply for
625,676,760 new ordinary shares of the Company. The
remaining offer shares will be fully underwritten by
Kingston Securities Limited, an independent third party,
pursuant to an underwriting agreement dated 15 July
2003, subject to certain terms and conditions. Further
details of the open offer are also set out in the Company's
announcement dated 16 July 2003.

Further to the open offer set out above, subsequent to
the balance sheet date, the Directors have succeeded to
reschedule the repayment terms of certain of the Group's
indebtednesses in order to improve its immediate liquidity
position.

(i) The Group has obtained written consent from one of
the Group's Mainland China bankers to reschedule
and extend the repayment period, subject to a
repayment of the principal amount of approximately
HK$841,000 and the settlement of interest payable
of HK$671,000 by the Group, of its bank borrowings
as at 31 March 2003 of approximately
HK$23,458,000 for a further one year upon their
original maturity in the second half of 2003.
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4.

(if)

(iii)

—EE=F=ZH=1-H

BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued)

Speed Up Developments Limited (“Speed Up"),
an independent loan provider to the Group, has
assigned its entire interest in other loans of
HK$20,400,000 together with the accrued interest
of HK$1,578,000, (the “Assigned Loans") owed
by the Group as at 31 March 2003 to Vision
Century subsequent to the balance sheet date.
On 2 July 2003, Vision Century granted a credit
facility (the “Credit Facility”) to the Company
amounting to HK$50,000,000 to surrogate the
amount due from the Company as at that date,
which covered the Assigned Loans and the loan
balance of HK$12,000,000 (note 22) due to it
as at 31 March 2003, additional loan balances of
HK$11,000,000 granted to the Company
subsequent to 31 March 2003 and the accrued
interest thereon as at that date. Vision Century
has undertaken that it will not demand the Group
to repay partly or wholly of any advance made to
the Group under the Credit Facility before 31
October 2004.

Certain directors have agreed that they would
not demand for the Group to repay partly or
wholly of a total sum of approximately
HK$1,998,000 outstanding as at 31 March 2003
in respect of their accrued emoluments unless
the Group has sufficient working capital for its
normal operational requirements.

(c) The Directors have taken action to tighten cost controls
over factory overheads and various general and

administrative expenses.

4.
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HAGZEEEEMRAT XIN CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RRMNE

4. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued)

A summary pro forma consolidated net asset statement of the
Group as at 31 March 2003, which is prepared based on the
audited consolidated net deficiency in assets of the Group as
at 31 March 2003, adjusted as if the financing measures as
set out in (a) and (b) above had taken place on 31 March
2003, is presented below.

3/ March 2003 Z=—ZFEE=fF=HF=+—H

mEIEE (&)
AEER_TT=F=A=+t—"RHZHBEERSE
EFEREIMEDREAEER _TT=F=A4
St HZRERSEAEEBMFRAE IR
REM@RO)BRZBETZEN_TT=F=A
=t HETMELFE RENMT :

Pro forma adjustments

BERE
Audited
consolidated Pro forma
net Reschedule adjusted
deficiency in the repayment consolidated
assets as at terms of net assets
31 March the Group’s  at 31 March
2003 Open offer indebtedness 2003
BEilAKE
R=-BE=F Bz R=-FTB=F
=A=t+—8H NEABRE EEHKX =BA=+—H
ZREREE (note a) (noteb) ZHERAR
EEBMFEE (Pff 5Ea) (ff5Eb) HREEEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
Non-current assets EMEBEE 97,158 < — 97,158
Current assets MBEE 11,793 49,735% = 61,528
Current liabilities mEEE (103,129) - 59,434 (43,695)
Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEE/
(BfE) #E (91,336) 49,735 59,434 17833
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (16,836) - (59,434) (76,270)
Net assets/(deficiency in assets) BEFE/
(BEBA) (11,014 49,735 - 38,721
Issued capital BBEITRA 2,155 8,621 -~ 10,776
Reserves f# & (13,169) 41,114 - 27,945
(11,014) 49735 - 38,721
*  Adjusted for related expenses of HK$1,991,000 to be paid in *ORARBEEMSEAIN ZEBRX1,991,000% T

connection with the open offer and assumed no conversion of

convertible note and bonds of the Company is exercised before

the open offer.
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%ﬁél%? HTEBRAT XIN CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B3 3k & M

3/ March 2003 =—ZEZE=f#=H=+—H

BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued)

In the opinion of the Directors, in light of the measures taken
to date, together with the expected results of other measures
in progress, the Group will substantially improve its financial
position and has net current assets and net assets including
substantial cash resources as reflected in the above pro forma
consolidated net asset statement of the Group as at 31 March
2003. In addition, Huang Worldwide Holding Limited (“Huang
Worldwide"), the immediate holding company of Vision Century
and incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, has undertaken
to the Company, during the period up to 31 October 2004, to
provide continuing financial support to the Group so as to
enable the Group to continue its day-to-day operations as a
viable going concern notwithstanding any present or future
financial difficulties experienced by the Group.

Having regard to the above measures, the Directors of the
Company are satisfied that the Group will be able to meet its
financial obligations as and when they fall due in the
foreseeable future and be able to operate as a commercially
viable concern. Accordingly, these financial statements have
been prepared on a going concern basis.

The financial statements have not incorporated any adjustments
that may be required if the above measures are not successful.
Should the Group be unable to continue as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to restate the value of all
assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any further
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets
and liabilities as current assets and liabilities, respectively. The
effects of these adjustments have not been reflected in the
financial statements.

mHE%E (F)

EERA - BERLCSAERRZEBNARRITHEAM
ﬁmz%% e $$Ihﬁ%&=ﬁﬁﬁ#
CHERBEEFENEEFE(BRAERS
A@EFLX$$IF_77f¢ A=t1— HZ
BERESEEFERKPRE ° I - Huang
Worldwide Holding Limited ([Huang Worldwide |) -
Ty Vision Centuryz B #ER AR - REEE L E
SHMKY ERARFEARE  EHEZZSTH
FTA=+—BLLHHE BEELE TAEENK
XE UEASEEEYEABRRKBEER B
WER - NAEEHEE B EERNA T2 HER

Sk o

REBLMEREK  NRARESERALEEKA
%ﬁEHEFTﬁZ%XU%ZWW%T |
ENERE BOEAELAT2REREE - Fit -
HEMBRROCEFELLEERR -

i Lt SR AE R - IR 2 EMHFARLREE
RAMBHRERP - WAKERERFELEER
T A ELERABUAD RIS AEEE B
ESJZHANEE  HAEELZEMAEIE
BIELEE  URKERDEENBBEHR IR
RRBEERAE REHEBMIRZITESS
REREARFFEREF ©
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HAGZEEEEMRAT XIN CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RRMNE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Statements of Standard Accounting Practice,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for the periodic remeasurement of certain
fixed assets as further explained below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the audited
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for
the year ended 31 March 2003. The results of subsidiaries
acquired or disposed of during the year are consolidated from
or to their effective dates of acquisition or disposal, respectively.
All significant intercompany transactions and balances within
the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is a company whose financial and operating policies
the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company's profit
and loss account to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company's interests in subsidiaries are stated
at cost less any impairment losses.

Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability,
directly or indirectly, to control the other party, or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial
and operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be
related if they are subject to common control or common
significant influence. Related parties may be individuals or
corporate entities.
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%ﬁél%? HTEBRAT XIN CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B3 3k & M

3/ March 2003 =—ZEZE=f#=H=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

.

EREHEEBE (8)

Revenue recognition N+
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic HﬂU\TﬁE’\‘$§E@Tﬁ?ﬂ%i@ﬁfﬁ%%&@%@ﬂ%f@

benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, recognised when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership,
nor effective control over the goods sold; and

(b) interest income, on a time proportion basis taking into
account the principal outstanding and the effective interest
rate applicable.

Impairment of assets

An assessment is made at each balance sheet date of whether
there is any indication of impairment of any asset, or whether
there is any indication that an impairment loss previously
recognised for an asset in prior years may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable amount
is calculated as the higher of the asset's value in use or its net
selling price.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount

FHE RN & T AR

(@ REERHEE  WRNEFE2ZEARLE
REBBERP  HASEYERE KRB
REERENBCEREIXEEEmIAN
PRI RERR R

(b) MEWA - E%f&ﬁ?ﬂﬁiéﬁéi&iﬁgﬁﬁzgﬁ%
%JTHZE‘J'FﬁH:WJ%—'—u 5L

EERE

REEFBETHE  URERBBEAITRE
NMEFEELRRE IBEEMTRETEFE
EERZBEBEERETBEFEXETHRD - WA ER
RZEXRBRFE - ZEEZREEZR TG
e BECAMOEEREEZHAEERLH
EREZBRE -

BEBEEREERAEERLHE JKREER T A

of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. An impairment BR - REBEREEACHEEBEEEREAH
loss is charged to the profit and loss account in the period in B KEZEENEGMERHEEREER  RES

which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount,
when the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with
the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount of an asset, however not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.

@

BRIREREEZABETREARK -

ERRAUNBEEEZAREECHFLHEEZSY
B BACHERIAZKRESES TUED - AW -
MAFEZEEYECERAZHNEESE - AIEE
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HAGZEEEEMRAT XIN CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RRMNE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

A reversal of an impairment loss is credited to the profit and
loss account in the period in which it arises, unless the asset
is carried at a revalued amount, when the reversal of the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets, other than construction in progress, are stated at
cost or valuation less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. The cost of an asset comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset
to its working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after fixed assets have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged
to the profit and loss account in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated
that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future
economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of
the fixed asset, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional
cost of that asset.

Changes in the values of fixed assets are dealt with as
movements in the fixed asset revaluation reserve. If the total
of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual
asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to the profit
and loss account. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited
to the profit and loss account to the extent of the deficit
previously charged. On disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant
portion of the fixed asset revaluation reserve realised in respect
of previous valuations is transferred to accumulated losses as
a movement in reserves.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B k& M AR

3/ March 2003 =—ZEZE=f#=H=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fixed assets and depreciation (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost or valuation of each asset over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as
follows:

Medium term leasehold land

.

EREHEEBE (8)

BEEERITE (&)

WEDNRBEEEZ G AIEAFHUEREM
WHEHKAXEETE  FAZEEEFE XN
T

Over the lease terms

FRERFE & £ i %18 4 F 5

Buildings 2% to 5%, or over the lease terms, whichever is
shorter

EF 2% E5%k L FH - BEREE

Leasehold improvements

GERES

Moulds, plant and machinery

BE - BB RS

Furniture, fixtures, equipment and motor vehicles
B B RERAE

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of a fixed asset
recognised in the profit and loss account is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of fixed
assets when completed and ready for use.

20% or over the lease terms, whichever is shorter

H20%XEAOFEH  BBESE

12.5% to 15%
12.5% £ 15%

20%

REBESERTEREA L EABEREETEEME L
ZIERERE  DHEREMBSZABRBFRE
FRERERAEZER -

ERTIRDERET  BRAREAEEERS
B HAYEFE  -RABRSRE  KELAFAY
NS EEKAR o R TERN K &I EER R
EXPRZEEZEEEER -
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HAGZEEEEMRAT XIN CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RRMNE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leased assets

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect
the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised
finance leases are included in fixed assets and depreciated
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases are charged
to the profit and loss account so as to provide a constant
periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under the operating leases are charged to the profit
and loss account on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and, in
the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B3 3k & M

3/ March 2003 =—ZEZE=f#=H=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
significant timing differences in the recognition of revenue and

.

EREHEEBE (8)

iE 7 B R

ELBREAREEL  SAHRRBE R BEREIMA
HUWAE 57 E R LI 2 B E R Z5

expense for tax and for financial reporting purpose, to the RER EEHBEEARA REKAIEHERE
extent it is probable that the liability will crystallise in the RE - BEFIEEERL S TE A ARERE - BAIA
foreseeable future. A deferred tax asset is not recognised unless fk o

its realisation is assured beyond reasonable doubt.

Employee benefits EEEA

Paid leave carried forward EEEFRY

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under
their employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under
certain circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as at
the balance sheet date is permitted to be carried forward and

ZS%@*ETEETE% NBRABFRRERHBEFF
R-EETHERT  REEBNAZRZHBRHA
MEE AEREEET —ESEEEA - EA%Z
B AEEENREERFAZTERGEEZAHE

utilised by the respective employees in the following year. An HiZ TREAR KRB AR — ST KA -
accrual is made at the balance sheet date for the expected

future cost of such paid leave earned during the year by the

employees and carried forward.

Employment Ordinance long service payments 1E B 1% 0| R B IR % &

Certain of the Group's employees have completed the required
number of years of service to the Group in order to be eligible
for long service payments under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance in the event of the termination of their employment.
The Group is liable to make such payments in the event that
such a termination of employment meets the circumstances
specified in the Employment Ordinance.

A provision is recognised in respect of the probable future
long service payments expected to be made. The provision is
based on the best estimate of the probable future payments
which have been earned by the employees from their services
to the Group to the balance sheet date.

AREETEECERBTERBHIMBRE 2R
BER  AEBRREERBEEKLEZERAR
B HWERBERZRLTARBIRAMMREZ
BR - AEBEREEXNEREAREE -

AREEREF A RAEAN 2 RPRY E #
w—REE ZABRBEEERBEEEEA/L
ZHR AR SAREBRY 2 R B2 R
REBRBE Z2&RSHEAE o
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HAGZEEEEMRAT XIN CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RRMNE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Retirement benefits scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (the "MPF Scheme") under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the profit and
loss account as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group's employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme, except for the Group's employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group when an
employee leaves employment prior to the contributions vesting
fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

Share option scheme

The Company operates share option schemes for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group's operations. The
financial impact of share options granted under the share option
scheme is not recorded in the Company's or the Group's
balance sheet until such time as the options are exercised,
and no charge is recorded in the profit and loss account or
balance sheet for their cost. Upon the exercise of share options,
the resulting shares issued are recorded by the Company as
additional share capital at the nominal value of the shares,
and the excess of the exercise price per share over the nominal
value of the shares is recorded by the Company in the share
premium account. Options which are cancelled prior to their
exercise date, or which lapse, are deleted from the register of
outstanding options.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B k& M AR

3/ March 2003 =—ZEZE=f#=H=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments which are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when acquired,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group's cash management.

Prior to the adoption of the revised SSAP 15 during the year,
as explained in note 2 to the financial statements, cash
equivalents in the consolidated cash flow statement also
included advances from banks repayable within three months
from the date of the advance, in addition to bank overdrafts.
This change in definition has resulted in a prior year adjustment
relating to trust receipt loans, further details of which are
included in note 29(a) to the financial statements.

For the purpose of the balance sheet, cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted
as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the balance
sheet date of the future expenditures expected to be required
to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present
value amount arising from the passage of time is included in
finance costs in the profit and loss account.
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HAGZEEEEMRAT XIN CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RRMNE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign Currencies

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the applicable
exchange rates ruling as at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at
the balance sheet date are translated at the applicable exchange
rates ruling as at that date. Exchange differences are dealt
with in the profit and loss account.

On consolidation, the financial statements of overseas
subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars using the
net investment method. The profit and loss accounts of
overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year, and their
balance sheets are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates ruling as at the balance sheet date. The resulting
translation differences are included in the exchange fluctuation

reserve.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling as at the dates of the
cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.

Prior to the adoption of the revised SSAPs 11 and 15 during
the year, as explained in note 2 to the financial statements,
the profit and loss accounts of overseas subsidiaries and the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries were translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling as at the balance
sheet date. The adoption of the revised SSAP 11 has had no
material effect on the financial statements. The adoption of
the revised SSAP 15 has had no material effect on the amounts
of the previously reported cash flows of the prior year.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. 7EEHR

Segment information is presented by way of two segment DEERDERBEAZ2®R : VF—H2WEE
formats: (i) on a primary segment reporting basis, by business TREBHE  RME_HEREEDEMES
segment; and (ii) on a secondary segment reporting basis, by 1 .

geographical segment.

The Group's operating businesses are structured and managed
separately, according to the nature of their operations and the
products they provide. Each of the Group's business segment
represents a strategic business unit that offers products which
are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of
the other business segments. Summary details of business
segments are as follows:

(a) the toddler cars segment manufactures and trades

children’s ride-on cars featuring working horns and turning
wheels;

(b) the cycling segment manufactures and trades children’s
bicycles, tricycles and scooters; and

(c) the other toys segment comprises the manufacture and
the trading of pre-school toys, plastic utensils and other

fashionable toys.

In determining the Group's geographical segments, revenues

AEBZREXBIRERET 2 FHBEE RAME
HZERDIIRBRERE - AEBEEXBHBHE
REEM ORBUEXBEN - WEXBEM R
L ORARMEBOB AR RERE MRS
Bl - EBABZBEMT

() BETEIBEEBAREREEREREE - &
AR R Z RN LA EE) 2 BHE

(b) WEBELIBXBAREREEREEE » =
WMERBRE R

(o EItANE BRYEREER
PRRAMANEMKRTA -

SrtA

EETAKEZRDE  WAREER - IR

and results are attributed to the segments based on the location BEPMEMEMSE - BMEEM - BUM -+
of the customers, which are North America, Europe, Central EM - DRE - FREHEMHME - BEDREE

and South America, Asia Pacific region, Middle East and other
regions. Assets are attributed to the segments based on the
location of the assets.

There are no intersegment sales and transfers among the
business segments.

EMEREMSE -

XBOBCABENBHEREE -
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HAGZEEEEMRAT XIN CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B3 3R o& M AR

3/ March 2003 Z=—ZFEE=fF=HF=+—H

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. PEEH (&)

(a) BEKDSE

TREJNAKEZEB DB WA - BER
ETEE AFRERXXEH -

(a) Business segments

The following tables present revenue, loss and certain
asset, liability and expenditure information for the Group's
business segments.

Group Toddler cars Cycling Other toys Consolidated
A&EE g8 Wi At A 54
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
SERCE |TTTF |2RE-E |CTT_F |Z%R=F T F |2BFZF |°FTT-F
HK$'000 | HK$'000 | HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 | HK$'000| HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THT TER THT TER THT TR T
Segment revenue: DEWA
Sales to external IREPZ
customers HER 15,355 16,670 12,176 17002 10,561 13,736 | 38,092 [ 47408
Other revenue A A 274 487 218 495 179 405 671 1,387
15,629 17,157 12,394 17497 10,740 14,141 38,763 48,795
Segment results NEEE (779 (9950) (5,091 (11436)  (9518)| (10,099) (20,388)| (31,485)
Interest income and MEKAR
unallocated gains AP BN 4,405 364
Unallocated expenses AARAX (17,400 |  (12,328)
Loss from operating BEXH
activities B (33,383)| (43,449)
Finance costs FBER (5380)| (15,835)
Gain on debt restructuring, BB B4 2
net of expenses (fRRF ) 77,031 -
Profit/(loss) before tax BREAER/(BR) 38,268 | (59,284)
Tax BE (836) -
Net profit/(loss) from RREEARES
ordinary activities i/ (&)
attributable to shareholders %% 37432 | (59,284)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B k& M AR

3/ March 2003 =—ZEZE=f#=H=+—H

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. PEER (&)
(a) Business segments (Continued) (a) BREBSE (&)
Group Toddler cars Cycling Other toys Consolidated
A5E 2i7% W= Etsma G4
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
ZRRCF |CTTF |2BBZF |TT_F |2B8ZF |CTT_F (Z88ZF [CTEF
HK$'000 [ HK$'000| HK$'000 | HK$'000 [ HK$'000 | HK$'000 [ HK$'000 | HK$'000
THn TEx| TEx| ThEx| TE=x Tzl FEx| Thxn
Segment assets NREE 7,291 9,781 7799 11,360 7694 9263 22,784 | 30404
Unallocated assets ROREE 86,167 96,712
Total assets BEE 108,951 | 127,116
Segment liabilities BN 6277 | 18,19 6,127 13,492 6,044 9075 | 18,448 | 40,763
Unallocated liabilites KA R &E 101,517 | 214,749
Total liabilities Zaf 119,965 | 255512
Other segment EpBEH
information:
Depreciation weE 928 912 1,670 1,701 1,235 1,226 3,833 3,839
Unallocated amounts ~ AAEEE 10,963 10,911
14796 | 14750
Other non-cash expenses {1 3E38 £ % 702 417 947 126 742 147 2,391 690
Unallocated amounts ~ AAE 48 - 6,838
2,391 7528
Capital expenditure ERRX - 228 27 150 4 114 31 492
Unallocated amounts AP EE 893 4920
94| 5,412
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HAGZEEEEMRAT XIN CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RRMNE

3/ March 2003 Z=—ZFEE=fF=HF=+—H

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. PEEN (&)
(b) Geographical segments (b) BHESE
The following tables present revenue and certain asset TREIAEBERMWESBZWARETE
and expenditure information for the Group's geographical EEFAXER -
segments.
Group
558 Asia Pacfic region
Central and (including Hong Kong Niddle East
North America Europe South America and Mainland China) ~~ and other regions Consolidated
EXE
£ i GEEY) (REERRMERE)  4RRAMME 5&
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
C8%CE |ZRECF [Z3%2E |ZTECF | C88ZE | CRSCE| D88k (CRECF D38k |ITECF | C8R8zE |IEAC
HKS000 | HKS000 |  HKS'000 | HK§000 | HKS000 |  HKS000] HKS000 | HKS000 | HKS000 | HKS000 | HKS000 | HKS000
Thn | Ten| TEn| Tém| TEn| TEm| fEn| Ten| TEn| TEn| TER| Tén
Segment revenue: AERA -
Slestoetemd atomers AREFZEEE | oS4 | ND4|  BYE | 14060 701 | T1g40| 9308 [ 792 233 | 2% | 302 | 47408
Group
558 Asia Pacfic region
Central and (including Hong Kong Middle East
North America Europe South America and Mainland China) ~~and other regions Consolidated
EXE
13 i LY (AEERRMERE)  4RRAMME 5&
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
C8%CE |ZRECF [Z3%E |ZTECF | CRBZE | CRSCE| D88k (CRECF DBk |ITECF | CBR8zE |IEAC
HKS000 | HKS000 |  HKS000 | HKS000 | HKS000 |  HKS000| HKS000 | HKS000 | HKS000 | HKS000 | HKS000 | HKS000
TRn | Ten| TEn| Tém| TEn| TEm| fAn| TEn| TEn| TEn| TER| Tén
Othr segment information:  ZHAEER :
Segment assels HBEE 29 199 269 %7 - 48[ 108297 | 124062 90 40 10891 | 127116
Cepitl expendire BRRR - - - - - - 04| 540 - - 04| 540

ANNUAL REPORT 2003 3



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B k& M AR

3/ March 2003 =—ZEZE=f#=H=+—H

7. TURNOVER AND REVENUE 7. EEHERBKA
Turnover represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after EEBEECHGREERTN 2 ELEMEEF
allowances for returns and trade discounts. & -

ERE  HiWARKES AT

An analysis of turnover, other revenue and gains is as follows:

2003 2002
—EE-E| ZTT_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Turnover —E 3
Sale of goods HEED 38,092 47408
Other revenue Hpug A
Interest income MEMKA 78 14
Others H Al 921 466
999 480
Gains T
Gain on disposal of fixed assets HE B E & E K= - 243
Revaluation surplus on land THREFZ
and buildings BEih &% 82 -
Exchange gains, net ER W FHE 124 16
Write back of provision for bad and ~ RIZEREE
doubtful debts o 435 -
Waiver of accounts payable J& - BR SRR R 1,922 1,012
Waiver of interest accrued BMEMA 2 EET
on finance leases M EEHE 109 -
Waiver of a director's remuneration Bt zEZME R
accrued (note 10) (FiF5E10) 1,405 -
4,077 1,271
5,076 1,751
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HAGZEEEEMRAT XIN CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B3 3R o& M AR

8. LOSS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

The Group's loss from operating activities is arrived at after

charging/(crediting):

Cost of inventories sold

Depreciation

Provision for bad and doubtful debts:
Accounts receivable
Other receivables

Minimum lease payments under
operating leases
in respect of land and buildings
Auditors’ remuneration
Staff costs (excluding directors’
remuneration — note 10):
Salaries and wages
Retirement benefits scheme
contributions

Revaluation deficit/(surplus) on land
and buildings

Provision for inventories

Loss on disposal of fixed assets

ANNUAL REPORT 2003 F#

BEEFEKA
nE
RERBME
B BR B

H ftb & U 5ROR

BTt EETRE

HEBRETZ
RERE

ZEED BN 2

BINA (TERES
Me — MEE10)

FERIAE
RIKAEF
sHEIHE

T REF

BB (BR)

FREZEE

HEBEEERR

31 March 2003

REXBER
ARBEREXBEREME, GIA) AT ZE

—EE=F=ZH=1-H

2003 2002
—EE=ZF| —ZEEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
22,657 30,008
14,796 14,750
1,556 690
307 =
1,863 690
407 971
750 750
10,841 12,028
153 137
10,994 12,165
(82) 2,638
528 =

- 39




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B k& M AR

3/ March 2003 =—ZEZE=f#=H=+—H

8. LOSS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (Continued) 8. RMEXBER (&)

HEXRABEEBE IR ARITE LA
18,145,000 Bt ( —FZ —F : 18,092,000/
L) BERRBEXSENRYSIHE A B

Cost of sales includes approximately HK$18,145,000 (2002:
HK$18,092,000) relating to staff costs and depreciation which
are also included in the respective total amounts disclosed

separately above for each of these types of expenses. B o
As at 31 March 2003, the Group had no forfeited contributions RZZEE=F=A=+—B A5EETEDRK
available to reduce its contributions to retirement benefits HERATERA R AR RTBER B E 2 ER(ZF
schemes in future years (2002: Nil). T_F ) o
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. MBER
Group
REE
2003 2002
—2RE=F| 2T -F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Interest on bank loans, overdrafts HARAFANEHEEZ
and other loans wholly repayable RITER - BExXR
within five years HaEHRFE 4,701 15,268
Interest on convertible notes MR ERERESFE
and bonds 574 150
Interest on finance leases BMERLFE 105 417
5,380 15,835
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HAGZEEEEMRAT XIN CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RRMNE

10. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 10. EEME

BREETRAURBERRGHFEI61EREZES
MeHBmT

Particulars of directors’ remuneration, disclosed pursuant to
the Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, are as follows:

Fees: e
Executive directors WITES
Independent non-executive directors B FEHITEE

Other emoluments of executive WITESZHM
directors: Me -
Basic salaries, other allowances BEAFHS  Ha 2K
and benefits in kind EY A=
Retirement benefits scheme RKAE F &+ 2l
contributions fH 3K

ANNUAL REPORT 2003 F#

31 March 2003

—EE=F=ZH=1-H

Group

r&E
2003 2002
—RF=F| —TE_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTiERr TET
220 323
220 323
1,500 1,624
72 90
1,572 1,714
1,792 2,037




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B k& M AR

3/ March 2003 =—ZEZE=f#=H=+—H

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 10. EEM < (&)

The number of directors whose remuneration fell within the ETHEBESARzEEHEWOT ¢
following bands is as follows:

Group
rEE
2003 2002
—ER=H | —TT_F
Number of Number of
directors directors
E=gA EEHE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z — 1,000,000/ 7T 6 6
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7% 7T — 1,500,000/% 7T - 1
6 7
During the year, a director of the Company waived remuneration FRA ARG —BESHRHEEEIMNZ
of HK$1,405,000 payable to him (2002: Nil). 1,405,000 TM& (ZET —F : &) o
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to FAN - AEEHERAEANESINBEERKS
any of the directors as an inducement to join, or upon joining BEMAREB IR EEMAREBR M
the Group, or as a compensation for loss of office (2002: Nil). FIHBHE(ZETZ_F - &) -
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HAGZEEEEMRAT XIN CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RRMNE

11.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five highest paid individuals during the year included two
(2002: two) directors, details of whose remuneration are set
out in note 10 above. Details of the remuneration of the
remaining three (2002: three) non-director, highest paid
individuals are as follows:

EXEFS -

EWFH &=
RINEF A E
contributions IR

Basic salaries, other allowances H 2L &
and benefits in kind

Retirement benefits scheme

The remuneration of all non-director, highest paid individuals
fell within the band of nil to HK$1,000,000 for the years
ended 31 March 2003 and 2002.

During the year, there were no bonuses paid to or receivable
by any of the five highest paid individuals of the Group (2002:
Nil). No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join, or upon
joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of office (2002:
Nil).
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3/ March 2003 Z=—ZFEE=fF=HF=+—H

1. ANEREHFMAL

ERUsRHFALZF MU (ZET_F M
) BARRES  RELHMEFREHIIN EX
ME10 - R N = (ZTF_F : =) FEFZ
SEFALTZHEWT

Group

FEE
2003 2002
—RF=F| —TEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTiERr TET
833 878
42 44
875 922

BE_TT-FR-_TTE_F=-A=1+—HLHF
E FBEEEZEaFALIHENTEE
1,000,000/ 70 < 48 I A ©

FA - AKRERERNEAAUREFAL(ZES
ZF E) INSENE R AR BB ER T
MEMNSESHEALTINME AR HEMBAE
ESEANBASER R BEBEE (222
—F |



%ﬁél%? HTEBRAT XIN CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B3 3k & M

31 March 2003

12.

13.

14.

—EE=F=ZH=1-H

TAX

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the Group did
not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates, based on existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

The current year's tax charge of HK$836,000 represents the
provision for deferred tax in respect of accelerated depreciation
allowance (note 25).

There was no unprovided deferred tax for the Company and
the Group in respect of the year (2002: Nil).

NET PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

The net loss from ordinary activities attributable to shareholders
for the year ended 31 March 2003 dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company is HK$49,662,000 (2002: net
profit of HK$37,461,000).

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the net
profit attributable to shareholders for the year of
HK$37,432,000 (2002: net loss of HK$59,284,000) and the
weighted average of 189,063,902 (2002: 51,551,624, restated
to reflect the share consolidation during the year (note
26(vi)(a))) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share amounts for the years ended
31 March 2003 and 2002 have not been disclosed, as the
exercise prices of the outstanding share options of the Company
were greater than the average market prices of the Company's
shares during those years, and therefore the share options
had no dilutive effect on the basic earnings/(loss) per share
for the years ended 31 March 2003 and 2002.

&

12.

13.

14.

BiIE

ARFERALEREET L ERBOGHN - B Et
BEMEHERS  NEMMER 2 BREENB
B ERBEAEBZRITEN B RE - BA
SEBRAREEB 2R ZM XA

RNEE 7T E H836,000/8 T ABIMEITERS
W2 ELERIBEAE (HEE25) °

AARRAEBREBFEVEREH 2 BELTH
H(ZEE_F: &) -

BREM B EERERN(BE) 28

RARRBEREANRBEZHE-_ZST=F
A=+ BULEFEZREEBEEBEEKERF
#R49,662,0008 L (ZETZF : 5 M )F8
37,461,000/ 7T) °

BREFN (B#H)

BREABMNDIBBEARFE 2 RE B R FFE
37,432,0008 T (Z 2 Z —F : BB F &
59,284 ooo;‘%ﬁ)&iﬁqa%%ﬁ%x%ﬂu%%’ﬁ&
189,063,902/ ( —ZZTZ =4 : 51,551,624 * &
i’iwﬁﬁﬁ%%izt&ir 17 2 Ifp & OF (BT aE
26(vi)(@)) ) &t

AR ARABHARITEBEREZITEEANEFER
ARARBHZFAME  BEBREYBEEZE_F
Z-FR TR _F-A=t-BHLEFEZER
EXRBHN,/ (BR THEEYE  RUE25E
E_TE-FR-_FE_F-A=t—HLEE
ZEREERRN, (BE) -
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HAGZEEEEMRAT XIN CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B3 3R o& M AR

15. FIXED ASSETS

Group

Cost or valuation:
At beginning of year
Additions
Disposals
Deficit on revaluation
Write off

At 31 March 2003

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment;
At beginning of year
Provided during the year
Reversal upon
revaluation
Write off

At 31 March 2003

Net book value:
At 31 March 2003

At 31 March 2002

Analysis of cost or
valuation:
At cost
At 31 March 2003
valuation
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31 March 2003

—EE=F=ZH=1-H

15. BIE&E
rEE
Furniture,
Medium term fixtures,
leasehold Moulds, equipment
and and Leasehold plant and and motor  Construction
buildings  improvements machinery vehicles in progress Total
nHEE g BE. Gl £8
THRES NELE BER#E RERAE ERIE ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FhT Fhr AL Fhr AL FhT
RAGMGE:
&) 94,950 22,508 88,051 3,909 32,288 241,706
R - 66 137 721 - 924
k-3 - - (13) - - (13)
EfAE (10,200) - - - - (10,200)
i35 (8,600) - - - - (8,600)
RZEE=F
=A=1-H 76,150 22574 88,175 4,630 32,288 23,817
ZRNER
R
£4) 16,046 17456 62,016 2,897 32,288 130,703
EREE 2,794 4,490 6,908 604 - 14,796
Bk
ks (10,240) - - - - (10,240
34 (8,600) - - - - (8,600)
RZEE=F
=A=1-8 - 21,946 68,924 3,501 32,288 126,659
FEFE:
R-BE=F
=A=1-R 76,150 628 19,251 1,129 S 97158
RZEEZF
=A=1+-R 78,904 5,052 26,035 1,012 - 111,003
RAGfEE
LLik
KRG E - 22,574 88,175 4,630 32288 147667
RZEE=F
=A=1-R
IEERE 76,150 - - - - 76,150
76,150 22,574 88,175 4,630 32,288 23,817




%ﬁél%? HTEBRAT XIN CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B k& M AR

3/ March 2003 =—ZEZE=f#=H=+—H

15. FIXED ASSETS (Continued) 15. BEEE (&)
Company KA F]
Furniture,
fixtures,
equipment
and motor
vehicles
B BEHE
RERAE
HK$'000
FAT
Cost: DN
At beginning of year and FORR_TE=F=A=+—H
at 31 March 2003 615
Accumulated depreciation: REITE -
At beginning of year F 1)) 76
Provided during the year FREE 305
At 31 March 2003 R-ZZE=F=-A=1T—H 381
Net book value: AREFE -
At 31 March 2003 R-ZE=F=A=+—H 234
At 31 March 2002 R-_FE-_F=A=+—~H 539
All the Group's medium term leasehold land and buildings are AEBZFHBEE L REF2MUREB N
situated outside Hong Kong. All the Group's leasehold land She RZTFB=F=A=+—H BIUEXMHEE
and buildings were revalued by Knight Frank Hong Kong Limited, AR (MERE) BRARIRITESENAE
independent professionally qualified valuers, on a depreciated X EMMEHELHWEETFT  HERKRER
replacement cost basis as at 31 March 2003 at HK$76,150,000. 76,150,000/ JT °
A total revaluation surplus of HK$82,000 arising therefrom HETEMGF 2820008 TEMBAK KK
and representing the surplus of the revalued amounts over EREMEEROECEHERL - 2RER
the then carrying values of the revalued assets, on an individual BEZEE RETHEZETAR-

asset basis, has been credited to the profit and loss account.
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HAGZEEEEMRAT XIN CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHERRMS

15. FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

Company (Continued)

A total revaluation deficit of HK$42,000 arising therefrom and
representing the shortfall of the revalued amount under the
then carrying value of a revalued asset, on an individual asset
basis, has been debited to the fixed asset revaluation reserve
to the extent that the corresponding reserve brought forward
is sufficient to cover the deficit.

Had the Group’s revalued leasehold land and buildings been
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation, their carrying
amounts would have been approximately HK$60,665,000
(2002: HK$63,596,000).

Certain leasehold land and buildings, plant and machinery and
equipment with an aggregate carrying value of HK$45,400,000
(2002: HK$47,500,000) as at 31 March 2003 were pledged
to secure bank borrowings advanced to the Group as set out
in note 20 to the financial statements.

Pursuant to various sale and purchase agreements (the “S&P
Agreements”) entered into between the Group and an
independent third party, during the years 1998 and 1999, the
Group acquired certain leasehold land (the “Land”) in Mainland
China with a carrying value of HK$29,000,000, as at 31 March
2003. Pursuant to the S&P Agreements, the Group is required
to pay annual fees of HK$118,000 in respect of the Land
commencing from 2008 up to 2048 with a 20% increment
for every five years.

The Group has not yet obtained the land-use rights certificate
for the Land. As confirmed by the legal opinion issued by the
Group's Mainland China lawyers, subject to the payment of a
land premium of approximately HK$9.8 million, which has been
fully provided for in these financial statements, there is no
legal barrier or otherwise for the Group to obtain a land-use
rights certificate for the Land from the relevant Mainland China
authority.

The net book value of the Group's fixed assets held under
finance leases included in the total amount of plant and
machinery as at 31 March 2003 amounted to HK$2,354,000
(2002: HK$6,833,000).
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3/ March 2003 Z=—ZFEE=fF=HF=+—H

15. BIEEE (&)

ERF (#E)
HEITEMPTS 242,000 TEGEEA - KK
EREMEERAEZESHSREAM  SRER
BECEE RETEEEMRET AR (EXA
fEES AR ARAEM AR)

MAEBRKEGzHE L RIEFUARANR 25
eI - AIEEREER4 560,665,000/ T(=
TE 4 1 63,596,000 7T). °

B MR T 20FTE, - AEBEHE TR S
A=+—HER®E®{EZ45,400,000/8 7T
(:%?Z:i 47,500,000 70) 2 & L1 K 1&
CEERREERARSETAEERZ

—NWANER—NAANFHBE  BREASEEH
BUF—EIUZ2ZHEBEHZ([EE HEl) -
AEBRPHAKBETHE L0 ([ZLH]) - R
—TZTE=%=H=+—8 - EEE@TEH
29,000,000 - REEEWHZ  A-ZT\F
FRBEEE-_TMONF AL  ASBEARZLIHEX
T 118,000 7T + 078 & FF 3 10 20% ©

AEEVRLZ L ES T HFERESE - HASE
BrHhBEEMERCZERELRR  FLHEE
#19,800,000/8 7T (E AT Bk A2 E ) 17
% AEBEHPEAEEBIERZ LHERLT
M AR EA RN EMER -

RZFE=ZF=-A=+—0 s ABRFEEKER
u%ﬂéﬁ%@ﬁﬁzIELFZEEE;‘%@Z%
2,354,000/ 70 ( — &~ : 6,833,000/ 7T) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B k& M AR

3/ March 2003 =—ZEZE=f#=H=+—H

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16. RMTB AR 2=

Company
AAF

2003 2002
ZBBR=F| —TT-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FET
Unlisted shares, at cost JEETRRGD - AR ARE 68,709 68,709
Less: Provision for impairment O ERE (68,709) (68,709)
Due from a subsidiary BB A B R 189,618 100,555
Less: Provision o B (167,526) (100,555)
22,092 —
22,092 —

AARRBZARBDEEZMBEARNRKAEL
W RERERTERY -

The amounts due from a subsidiary included in the Company's
current assets are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed

terms of repayment.
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HAGZEEEEMRAT XIN CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B3 3R o& M AR

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

3/ March 2003 Z=—ZFEE=fF=HF=+—H

16. RBAR 2 &EHE (4B)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Name

28

Hung Cheong
Holdings Limited

HEERARAA
Hung Cheong Toys
Factory Limited

HEEMABARAR

Zl

Able Market Profits
Limited

Hung Cheong Toys
International Limited
(HHCT")

HEIABRERAR A A
(TEEmMA])

ANNUAL REPORT 2003 F#

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations
B3z aE R
REEHH

British Virgin
Islands (“BVI")/
Hong Kong

RBREUESE/

BB

BVI/
Hong Kong

EBRUESE/

BB

BVI

RBRERES

Hong Kong

Nominal

value of issued
ordinary

share capital
BRTZ
ERRAEE

Ordinary
US$2,004

FHER
2,004% 7T

Ordinary
us#4

4ETT

Ordinary
US$1
1€ 7T

Ordinary
HK$1,000
Non-voting
deferred
HK$200,000%*
1,000/ 7T
BERER
BEER
200,000/8 7T *

ARBEEMBEARIZERMT :

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company

RD T EAL
BAEZBD L
Direct Indirect

B i #5

100 -

100 -

100 -

- 100

Principal
activities

TEEK

[nvestment
holding

REZRK

Manufacturing
and trading of
toy products
It B E m

[nvestment
holding
& & R

Dormant

TEXY



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B k& M AR

3/ March 2003 =—ZEZE=f#=H=+—H

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 16. REBLAR 2w (&)

Place of
incorporation/

Nominal

value of issued Percentage of

registration ordinary equity attributable Principal
Name and operations share capital to the Company activities
B3 & B#TZ DA EA
=E REEMR EBERAEE RAEZA DL TEXH
Direct Indirect
BEE e %

Xin Toys International Hong Kong Ordinary - 100 Trading of
Limited HK$2 toy products
(Formerly H&C
International Toys
Limited)

el AEBR AR A A BB Rl EEmMAEM
(T fE2E SEBRITA AR 2 E) 28T

Huang Chiang Chen Hong Kong Ordinary - 100 Property
Hung Cheong Plastics HK$1,000 holding
Factory Company Non-voting
Limited deferred

HK$10,000*

BLRESZERBH e ERELs MERHE

BRAA 1,000 7T
BERER

BER D

10,0007 7T *

ANNUAL REPORT 2003 F#



HAGZEEEEMRAT XIN CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RRMNE

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

*  The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights to dividends other
than a fixed non-cumulative dividend at the rate of 5% per
annum on the excess of the net profit over

HK$1,000,000,000,000 that the company may determine to

distribute in respect of any financial year. On a winding-up, the

holders of the non-voting deferred shares are entitled, out of
the surplus assets of the company, to a return of the capital
paid up on the non-voting deferred shares held by them
respectively, after a total sum of HK$1,000,000,000,000 has
been distributed in such a winding-up in respect of each of the
ordinary shares of the company. Save as described above, the
holders of the non-voting deferred shares are not entitled to
any patticipation in the profit or surplus assets of the company
and shall not be entitled to receive notice of or to attend or

vote at any general meeting of the company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

17. INVENTORIES

Raw materials JR¥
Work in progress = X i
Finished goods K m

The carrying amount of inventories carried at net realisable
value included in the above balance was approximately
HK$67,000 (2002: HK$89,000) as at the balance sheet date.
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16. RBAR 2R (4B)

*OERRERELERGZFEA  AEKERARRE
W BEE @ IREETE 2 5%F X 7] g Rk %18
H 45 711,000,000,000,00078 7T 2 #1582 [E £ IF &2
BIRE - BRt 2N BEREZERETEROHIEEAE
RS - BRE - BREREEROIZAEA
ERRRAABREBRE S K& &
1,000,000,000,000 T - REFESBRFBZ
BRERELCRG  BARZHABREEREESR
B#ER R Lz BERERBETEROST
BAERSZGHNAFTERARIZBHREE i R
MERBRBRARZBRREAGEE  kHEZEKX

EYTHEEERR -

EERR LRMIZARBMBAREANEE
CERBELTBERE IBRAEEEEFEZ
TERD EFZRR/ FAEEHEBERRKER
ABIBRITE

17. B&

Group

rEE
2003 2002
—ERE=F| 2T -F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FH&T
1,943 2,524
432 599
4,016 3,882
6,391 7,005

REER Pl EREEARZEERBEL
67,0008 7T (Z&Z =4 : 89,000/87T) °



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B k& M AR

3/ March 2003 =—ZEZE=f#=H=+—H

18. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 18. FEUWER
The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on BREEFP—RAZEMNIEN  AEEEETF
credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance ZEBGBRFUNEERE FEH KA —E
is normally required. The credit period is generally for a period A MEERXFAAERE=EA - BR2EF,Y
of one month, extending up to three months for major ERaEERTE mREREY TSR ARG
customers. Each customer has a maximum credit limit. Overdue B o

balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.

An aged analysis of the accounts receivable as at the balance REER  HERBBMRBKEER 2 BRERX
sheet date, based on invoice date, and net of provisions, is as REe DT
follows:
Group
-
2003 2002
—ER=H| —TT_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FAT
Within 30 days 30HA 1,018 2,464
31 to 60 days 31E60H A 106 360
61 to 90 days 61Z90H A 1 305
91 to 180 days 91£180H A 436 1,003
Over 180 days #3180 H 15 32
1,576 4,164
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HAGZEEEEMRAT XIN CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B3 3R o& M AR

19. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

An aged analysis of the accounts payable as at the balance

sheet date, based on invoice date, is as follows:

Within 30 days
31 to 60 days
61 to 90 days
91 to 180 days
Over 180 days

ANNUAL REPORT 2003 F#

308 A
31E60HA
61290H N
91Z180H K
i@ 180R

31 March 2003

—EE=F=ZH=1-H

Group
rEE
2003 2002
—E2E=F| —FTT
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET
336 1,947
404 834
247 703
206 2,361
11,444 17,882
12,637 23,727




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B k& M AR

3/ March 2003 =—ZEZE=f#=H=+—H

20. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 20. ANFEZRITERRHEMER
Group Company
rEE AT
2003 2002 2003 2002
—EB=E | ZTT_F |ZBE=HF | _ZTT_F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FAET FTEx FHET
Bank overdrafts: RITHEX -
Secured B - 1,481 - =
Unsecured £ 4 1 - 6,413 - =
- 7894 - -
Bank loans: RITER :
Trust receipt Bt R E
loans — secured — 5 1 17 - 18,098 - =
— unsecured — MK 47 - 54,480 - -
- 72,578 - =
Other bank HAnsRITE X
loans — secured B — B HEA 26,869 30,233 - =
— unsecured — AR - 8,398 - =
26,869 38,631 - =
Total bank loans RITERERE 26,869 111,209 - =
Other loans — unsecured H B R — EIH 20,400 26,400 20,400 26,400
47269 145,503 20,400 26,400
Current portion of finance BIERER 19 2
lease payables (note 23) ENRERE (HiF23) 966 2,881 - -~
48,235 148,384 20,400 26,400
All the Group's bank overdrafts, bank loans, trust receipt loans R-ZZEZE=F=A=+—BARKBEZFMERTE
and other loans as at 31 March 2003 are repayable within RITEE

N ERRBEERKEMEREIRE
one year or on demand. 2

ANNUAL REPORT 2003 F#



HAGZEEEEMRAT XIN CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHERRMS

20.

21.

22.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(Continued)

At 31 March 2003, the banking facilities of the Group were
supported by:

(i) certain leasehold land and buildings of the Group in
Mainland China with an aggregate carrying value of
approximately HK$45,400,000 (2002: HK$47500,000);
and

(i) corporate guarantees executed by certain subsidiaries of
the Company.

LOANS FROM A DIRECTOR

The loans from a director were unsecured, bore interest at the
prime lending rate in Hong Kong plus 3% per annum and
were assigned to a shareholder during the year (note 29(b)(v)).

LOANS FROM A SHAREHOLDER

The loans from a shareholder are unsecured, bear interest at
the prime lending rate in Hong Kong plus 3% per annum and
are repayable on demand.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the shareholder has
undertaken that it will not demand the Group to repay partly
or wholly of the loans advanced to the Group before 31
October 2004 (note 4).

ANNUAL REPORT 2003 F#

20.

21.

22.

3/ March 2003 Z=—ZFEE=fF=HF=+—H

ANFBRZRITERREMER (B)

R_TE=F=A=1+—H FAEEZRITHE
ARSI S RERER -

() ANEBERAEEAREL45400,0008T (ZEF
4 1 47,500,000/870) 2 & THEEE £
RiEF R

(i) ARBETHERRMELZ RBHER -

—NESERHEZER
KB — Tlﬁ%ZE KA E|IEH - TENEREF

BEREBEER ?'JTBDBE ZERRFABET
— B R (£ 29(b)(v))

—UBRREHRZER
—(UREEH 2 ERITEEE - 5TER)
BEARERERFEMNIE MK ERKE

=)
o
'*é.‘*
=l

REF
E -

Hg ZREABEITSERAEER -
+H T HAEESOHREBRTFAE
(P 5E4)



%ﬁél%? HTEBRAT XIN CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B3 3k & M

3/ March 2003 =—ZEZE=f#=H=+—H

23. BARMERY

RAFERN AEELHEEREREMR R TE L
2y o WEHECIIERMERLD - LMRHRHEE

23. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES

The Group leased certain of its plant and machinery, and motor
vehicles during the year. These leases are classified as finance

leases and have remaining lease terms of less than one year. FHIR—F o
As at 31 March 2003, the total future minimum lease payments RZTZEZT=F=H=+—B @EHAOTZBE&
under finance leases and their present values were as follows: BNREHEERERENT :

Group

Present value of

Minimum lease minimum lease

payments payments
EAsEES ERBEESRE
2003 2002 2003 2002
—ER=H | _TT_F |ZEE=F | _TT_F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FET FTHER FET
Amounts payable: HENE-E
Within one year —FN 990 3,025 966 2,881
In the second year E-_FNR - 1,186 - 918
Total minimum J& it & 1K
finance lease payments iRk 990 4211 966 3,799
Future finance charges AKRBEER (24) (412)
Total net finance lease payables ENREMAFELRE 966 3,799
Portion classified as current I RmE B ARG
liabilities (note 20) (B 5% 20) (966) (2,881)
Long term portion R EBAER 15 - 918

ANNUAL REPORT 2003 F#



HAGZEEEEMRAT XIN CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RRMNE

24. CONVERTIBLE NOTES AND BONDS

The Company has issued the following convertible notes and
bonds:

(i) Pursuant to the Bank Compromise Agreement, the Bank
Group was issued convertible bonds with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$6,500,000 by the Company on
16 May 2002. The convertible bonds bear interest at the
rate of 5% per annum and are repayable by three equal
instalments on each anniversary of the issue of convertible
bonds. The interests are payable semi-annually. The first
instalment was settled by the Company on 16 May 2003.
The second and third instalment of the convertible bonds
are repayable on 16 May 2004 and 16 May 2005,
respectively, subject to terms and conditions pursuant to
the convertible bonds instruments which the Company is
presently unable to meet. Accordingly, the convertible
bonds have been considered by the directors to be
repayable on demand and have been classified as current
liabilities in the balance sheet as at 31 March 2003.
Pursuant to the convertible bonds instruments, the
convertible bonds are convertible to the shares of the
Company at a conversion price of HK$0.01 per share,
which was adjusted to HK$0.50 per share as a result of a
share consolidation implemented by the Company on 30
December 2002 (note 26(vi)(a)), at any time during the
period from the issue date up to and including 16 May
2005. The Company may at any time, after the issue of
the convertible bonds, redeem all or part of the convertible
bonds at a value equivalent to 105% of the outstanding
principal amounts of the convertible bonds. Further details
of the Bank Compromise Agreement are set out in note
3(a)(ii) to the financial statements.
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24, TRREBRES
ARBEHTNIAREEELES:

() RERTZHBHE RER_TT_FHA
TNBEARAREITAS 8% 6,500,000/ 7T
ZABRES  ZEBHF2FERFESE -
FHS—HR I RREFBEZETRAF A
BiE - FIBHEELF—IR - HHAARRQF
R_ZE=ZFRA+AEE - ATRES
CE_HEE-BHFEIRNER_TTENF
AAT+AER-_ZEZERFRA+ABEE -
B A AR E H 4 T 2 BRI R K1
(R ARREFEERE ZFHRRRGE) - B
tt EERAULREFBREREEZSA
& RZET=F=-A=+—HZEEARE
EANBEARBEE REUTLKRES 2R
T OTBRREFURETAHEZ(BE) =
TERFRA T B HEERAER0.0E
TZRBERBAERARRSG  BRARRN
TEECFF AT RETROE M (W
26(vi)(a)) * ZERARAETRERE0S0%E
JC o AR A AR A R EF TR E(ARRE
RIAERARBRESFREERNS105% HE
BOARRES ZABRIMN - BARITE
BB IE—PHFBERY B RENE
3(a) (i) °



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B k& M AR

31 March 2003

—EE=F=ZH=1-H

24. CONVERTIBLE NOTES AND BONDS (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Pursuant to a compromise agreement entered into
between the Company and the PRC Entity in respect of
the settlement of its claim, the PRC Entity was issued a
convertible note in the principal amount of
HK$16,000,000 by the Company on 30 July 2002. The
convertible note is repayable on the second anniversary
of its issuance and bears interest at 3% per annum,
payable semi-annually. The convertible note is convertible
to shares of the Company at a conversion price of HK$0.01
per share at any time, which was adjusted to HK$0.50
per share as a result of a share consolidation implemented
by the Company on 30 December 2002 (note 26(vi)(a)),
during the period from the issue date up to and including
30 July 2004. The Company may at any time, after the
date of issue of the convertible note, redeem the whole
or any part of the convertible note at par value. Further
details of the compromise agreement entered into
between the Company and the PRC Entity are set out in
note 3(a)(iii) to the financial statements.

On 30 October 2000, the Company entered into a
conditional subscription agreement with Join Asia
Enterprises Limited (“Join Asia”), which is an independent
third party not connected with the Group. Pursuant to the
conditional subscription agreement, the Company issued
a convertible note of HK$3,000,000 to Join Asia. The
convertible note was issued at 100% of its principal
amount, bore interest at the rate of 5% per annum and
was payable on 16 November 2002. On 6 May 2002,
Join Asia converted in full the convertible note at the
conversion price of HK$0.015 per share which resulted in
the issuance of 200,000,000 shares (note 26(i)) of
HK$0.01 each in the Company.

24, MTRREBRES (&

(i)

(iii)

BEARAEAEPERERBRLARIIIL
ZHhnE PRCER-ZET_FLA=+
HER AR EITARE 2% 16,000,000/8 7T 2
RBRER - ZEBEERBTREZBEZ
HEEZ FMEBEAFEIE BEFIfMF—K-
RBREETRETAHES (BE) =2
ME+A=+HHBBERAER0.01BTL
RREABREARRBRD ARRGR=T
E-_F+_A=ZTHETKRHBAE (K=
26(vi)(@)) * ZERHAERERHIRES0E
JL o AR A AT A AR AR E R 31T 18 (A e
ZEHEERATRRER AR ERMIH -
EBAARRREPBMRII 2 2B HE &
—HHBER P BmEM T 3) ) °

N_EETF+A=+H AQREELH
ZER QA ([HE ) ST ERHERBERZE -
WO —BYUE=—% EASEWEBE -
BEZBERUERERE AR %17
3,000,000/ 7T 2 FI AR F1R T H 5 o AT
EEUNE2EAE CERITWNFRSEE
FE WER-_ZTETZ-_F+—A+HX
ft- RZFTT-FRAAHE  BHRELBRE
FRO0ISETEGE2BIRKREE - Bt
7200,000,0008% & R EE0.01/B 7T Z AR Al
Bfn (BzE26()) °
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HAGZEEEEMRAT XIN CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RRMNE

24. CONVERTIBLE NOTES AND BONDS (Continued)

A #2 i (8 55
BOTTHEERZAR

Pava

Group repayable on demand
Convertible note issued to the PRC

24, TRREBRES (&)

Convertible bonds issued to the Bank 217 FHRE 2 EEK(EE

Entity repayable in the second year ~ FZFEEZ JREKERIE

Convertible note issued to Join Asia

NERRBBEZE N

Portion classified as current liabilities

Non-current portion ERBEERN
25. DEFERRED TAX
At beginning of year F 9]
Charge for the year (note 12) AR B (PHFE12)
At end of year FH

ANNUAL REPORT 2003 F#
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25. EEH I

31 March 2003

—EE=F=ZH=1-H

2003 2002
—ERE=F| 2T -F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FH&T
6,500 =
16,000 =
- 3,000
22,500 3,000
(6,500) (3,000)
16,000 =
Group
rEE
2003 2002
—RE=F| 2T -F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FH&T
836 =
836 =




%ﬁél%? HTEBRAT XIN CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHRRMS

3/ March 2003 =—ZEZE=f#=H=+—H

25. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

The principal amounts of the Group's deferred tax assets not
recognised for in the financial statements as at the balance
sheet date were as follows:

Tax losses carried forward RIBEELS

25. EEHIE (&)

REEE  FRUBBERABRZ A EEEEH
EAEZASENT :

Not provided
xR &

2003
—EE=F

—_=

HK$'000
FET

5,283

2002
—EEF

HK$'000
TAET

17,404

AR AEEEMYBEMASHLELREL L
BT BUERAEEURTHEZEE L KE
FZEGBHRREBEMELERIELER -

No deferred tax has been provided on the revaluation surplus
of the Group's leasehold land and buildings situated in Mainland
China as the Group presently does not have any intention to
dispose of its leasehold land and buildings.

REER - AR RAE BB EEFRIERBELT
MEBE(ZEZE_F : &) o

The Company and the Group had no unprovided deferred tax
as at the balance sheet date (2002: Nil).

26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. KRR
Group
AEE
2003 2002
—ERE=F| 2T -F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Authorised: EERA
1,500,000,000 1,500,000,000/%
(2002: 10,000,000,000) ordinary (ZZ T =4 : 10,000,000,0008%)
shares of HK$0.01 each ERMECOIB T LB 15,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: EBTRHERA
215,525,638 215,525,638%
(2002: 2,483,936,760) ordinary (ZZZE — 4 : 2,483,936,7600%)
shares of HK$0.01 each ERMmECOIB T LB 2,155 24,839
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HAGZEEEEMRAT XIN CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %R R M A

26. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

During the year, the movements in share capital were as

follows:

0)

(it)

(iii)

(v)

V)

On 6 May 2002, the convertible note of HK$3,000,000
issued to Join Asia was converted into 200,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company at a
conversion price of HK$0.015 per share. The excess of
the principal amount of the convertible note upon
conversion over the nominal value of the shares issued,
amounted to HK$1,000,000, was credited to the share
premium account.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at a special
general meeting held on 13 May 2002, the authorised
share capital of the Company was increased from
HK$100,000,000 to HK$300,000,000 by the creation of
an additional 20,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each.

On 16 May 2002, the subscription agreement entered
into by the Company and Vision Century was completed
which resulted in the issue of 3,000,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company at a price of
HK$0.01 per share. Cash proceeds of HK$30,000,000,
before related expenses, were received by the Company.

On 29 May 2002, the open offer detailed in note 3(b)
was completed. A total of 4,025,905,140 new ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company were issued.
Cash proceeds of approximately HK$40,259,000, before
the related expenses, were received by the Company.

Pursuant to various compromise agreements entered into
by the Group with certain trade and other creditors detailed
in 3(a)(iii), the Company issued 1,066,440,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each at prices ranging from HK$0.01
to HK$0.015 each to the trade and other creditors. The
excess of the debt amounts settled by way of the
Company's shares issued over the nominal value of the
shares issued, amounting to approximately HK$342,000,
was credited to the share premium account.
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26. BA& (&)
FRZBRAZEEHNT:

() RZZEZT-_FRAA BHEEHETZ
3,000,000/ 7T A] IR EH A G 1R0.015/8 7T
ZHBERBAARARFREAEIIEBILZ
200,000,000/ F @R o HBREATRREERA
BB BTG EE 2 =% 1,000,000/ 7T

BEt ARG RERE -

(i) RE-ZET-_FRA+T=-RAERRFNAE
FRBr—HERARAZR KRB ZETER
7K £ %8 4N # 5020,000,000,0000% & % @ &
0.01/ Jt B& 15 B 100,000,000 T & &=
300,000,000 7T °

(i) ®=FF_FHA+/NA > A1 F HVision
Centurya] 3 Z BB & SEAK - BUEAR 2 A PA

F/%0.01%8 70 2 B 1 #173,000,000,000% 2
AR EREEOIB T ZERK - ARAE
I EX30,000,0007%8 7T 2 3R & W e (GRH1 JRAE B8
BH) -

RZZEZTZFRA=-+NA - WE3b)mi
L AREBESETK - ARABTE R
4,025,905, 140/ A2 A1 R EE0.01B T2
HEB o AR FE WEL4940,259,0007% 7T
ZBReWm (R REHEER) °

(iv)

(v) m3@)(iFri - REASEEAETES RE
MEEAT L ZNERHRE - NARNE
fZ0.01BTE0O0ISEBLLERMZEE S X
&1 A %17 1,066,440,0000% &R EEO0.0178
TTZEBR - ARBEBETRMNEEZE
EHEBRCETROBEZEEY
342,000 L E T AR M R ERR o

@



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B k& M AR

31 March 2003

—EE=F=ZH=1-H

26. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(vi) Pursuant to special and ordinary resolutions passed at a

special general meeting of the Company held on 30

December 2002, a capital reorganisation (the “Capital

Reorganisation”) involving, inter alia, the following was

implemented:

(a)

(b)

©

(d)

(e)

a consolidation of every fifty issued and unissued
shares of HK$0.01 each into one consolidated share
(the “"Consolidated Share”) of HK$0.50 each;

a reduction of the nominal value of each issued
Consolidated Share from HK$0.50 each to HK$0.01
each by the cancellation of HK$0.49 per share and
the credit arising therefrom amounting to
HK$105,607,000 (the “Capital Reduction”);

the cancellation of the entire amount standing to the
credit of the share premium account of the Company
and a transfer of the credit arising therefrom to the
contributed surplus account of the Company (note
28(b));

the cancellation of the existing authorised and
unissued share capital of the Company to
HK$15,000,000 1,500,000,000
consolidated shares of HK$0.01 each, ranking pari

comprising

passu in all respects with the existing share capital
of the Company; and

the application of the credit arising from the Capital
Reduction and the credit arising from the share
premium cancellation were applied in full, together
with the amount standing in the contributed surplus
to eliminate the accumulated losses of the Company.

Further details of the Capital Reorganisation are also set

out in the circular of the Company dated 5 December
2002.

26. BRA& ()

i) BER-_ZEZE _F+_A=+tHEHZAR
ARRFIAEBERAIENREBRARR
BAREH([EXEH]) EER SR (EFE
&) THEIE:

(a) BRETREECONEITLZ B 1T AR
Tl fn &P R —AREE0.508 T Z &
Bt (16 Gl 1)

(b) BRTHER0ABTTREEE ZE8E
105,607,000 L 2 & 176 H M 2 H
EREFRS0BTHESR0OIE T
(TEAHEIR]) -

(0 FHEARABMEERZEHHEARRE
W EE ZERFBEARRB ZHA
Etr (MiEE28(b)) -

(d EHARARBEATRRETEAR
15,000,000/ 7t (€21 1,500,000,0000%
BIREECOVEILEME TEEARF
REBRANARRF A 26 HlH): &

(e) & AHIRE £ < 4 o4 B K et 5 I {0
HEEL ZERTIE  ERHARKBE
FRARMBRAAR Z RFEREE -

EABETE - SHERRAATRN -2
—Et-ATRNEIAL -

A
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HAGZEEEEMRAT XIN CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B3 3R o& M AR

26. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

A summary of the transactions during the year with reference
to the above movements in the Company's authorised and
issued ordinary share capital is as follows:

3/ March 2003 Z=—ZFEE=fF=HF=+—H

26. BA& (&)

FRETEBLEARRRDEE KD #

ABH IR GHBHINMAT:

17 & B

Authorised share capital = E A
Number of
authorised shares
EER D EE
Notes '000 HK$'000
k=2 T % T
At 1 April 2001 and RZZBZE-—FMA-B K
1 April 2002 —EZE-FAH—H 10,000,000 100,000
Increase in authorised share capital V5 TE B 28 #2 40 (i 20,000,000 200,000
Share cancellation %1 ot 3 (vi)(d) (28,500,000) (285,000)
At 31 March 2003 R-_EBEE=F=F=+—H 1,500,000 15,000
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B k& M AR

3/ March 2003 =—ZEZE=f#=H=+—H

26. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 26. BA& (&)

Issued share capital EBTRA
Issued Share
Number of share premium
shares in issue capital account Total
BERTRAEE BRTRE ROBER ok
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B = TET TET THET
At 1 April 2001 and RZZEZ-FNA-BR
1 April 2002 —ZEZE-_FNMA—H 2,483,936,760 24,839 44,397 69,236
Shares issued on conversion RanBEER
of convertible note FrEE{T 2 K 1h (0 200,000,000 2,000 1,000 3,000
Shares issued on share B R R
subscription ZBh (i) 3,000,000,000 30,000 - 30,000
Shares issued on NRBERET
open offer ZBh (v) 4,025,905,140 40,259 - 40,259
Shares issued on BEETEZR
settlement of certain H AR ER R
trade and other creditors PrEE1T 2 17 (v) 1,066,440,000 10,664 342 11,006
Share consolidation B & b (viy@  (10,560,756,262) - - -
Capital reduction BRELA (vi)(b) - (105,607) - (105,607)
Share issue expense BROBTER - - (4,273) (4,273)
Share premium Rt B
cancellation it i (vi)(c) - - (41,466) (41,466)
At 31 March 2003 RZZEE=F=A=+—H 215,525,638 2,155 - 2,155
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26.

27.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
Share options

Details of the Company's share option scheme and the share
options issued under the schemes are included in note 27 below.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

SSAP 34 was adopted during the year, as explained in note 2
and under the heading “Employee benefits” in note 5 to the
financial statements. As a result, the following detailed
disclosures relating to the Company's share option schemes
are now included in notes to the financial statements. In the
prior year, these disclosures were included in the Report of
the Directors, as their disclosure is also a requirement of the
Listing Rules.

The Company operates the share option schemes for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations.

Pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by the Company
on 17 February 1998 (the “Old Scheme"), the directors of the
Company were authorised, on or before 16 February 2008, at
their discretion to invite any employees, including executive
directors of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, to take up
options to subscribe for shares of the Company. The
subscription price was the higher of the nominal value of the
shares of the Company and 80% of the average of the closing
prices per share of the Company's share on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited on the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer of the share options. The maximum
number of shares in respect of which options were granted
under the Old Scheme might not exceed, in nominal value,
10% of the issued share capital of the Company from time to
time which had been duly allotted and issued. The maximum
number of shares in respect of which options might be granted
to any one employee or director might not exceed 25% of the
aggregate number of shares in respect of which options were
issued and issuable under the Old Scheme. There was no
share option granted under the Old Scheme which remained
outstanding as at 31 March 2003.
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 27. BRESTE (&)

In order to comply with the new requirements of Chapter 17
of the Listing Rules on granting options under share option
schemes, which took effect from 1 September 2001, the Old
Scheme was terminated and a new share option scheme (the
“New Scheme") was adopted pursuant to the ordinary
resolutions passed by the shareholders at the special general
meeting of the Company held on 30 December 2002. Upon
adoption of the New Scheme, no options will be granted under
the Old Scheme from 30 December 2002.

Under the New Scheme, eligible participants include the
Company's directors, including independent non-executive
directors, other employees of the Group, suppliers of goods or
services to the Group, customers of the Group, and any minority
shareholders in the Company’s subsidiaries. The New Scheme
became effective on 30 December 2002 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from
that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the New Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. As at 31 March 2003, no share
options were granted under the New Scheme. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to each eligible
participant in the New Scheme within any 12-month period, is
limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit
is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

R LETRAETLEFAREBERES S
HEREZ&FAE (B-SFT-FNLA—BELE
M) REARABRRR-_TZE_F+_-_A=1H
ARCBRBHIRGBBZRER  EffSIHR
L 1 R ¥ A B w81 ([ 5t 1) 4RIk o MOEaT
SWEMR BE-_TT_F+_A=THERKAT
SREBEE X L EEE

BREHE  AERSEEBRARAZES (B
BBUFRTES) AREEMER AEEZ
EmAMBERER AREZETFRARRENE
REAZEMIBEERR - HA SN _FTT_F
TZRA=1TBAER  BRIERTHERERT - B
BZBEREARHARHI0F -

BRREFFTEAIEL 2R ITEBRESHERNZ
EHERBEETER 2 EERSHERERARMEWN
BEDZETRO 2100 R-TE=F=/[=+
—B WERENTEHREBERE -REM—E
NREAMBEA - BREHMTE  EWAEKRSEA
ERBRENBTZROBEZSTIERBAR
RAMEREEE BTN 2 1% o R HBBZE
ZEMEBRERLADNRRRABRREASHE -
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

Under the New Scheme, share options granted to a director,
chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, or
to any of their associates, are subject to approval in advance
by the independent non-executive directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any
of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of
the grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month
period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options under the New Scheme
may be accepted within 30 days from the date of the offer,
upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by
the grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted
is determinable by the directors, and commences after a certain
vesting period and ends on a date which is not later than five
years from the date of the offer of the share options or the
expiry date of the New Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options granted under the
New Scheme is determinable by the directors, but may not be
less than the higher of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of
the Company's shares on the date of the offer of the share
options; and (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price of
the Company's shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

The movements of the share options granted under the Old

Scheme during the year are set out below:

Number of share options

27. BIRHESTE (&)
TRENFAREEFERLE EREZEF

BREHE
Name or At Cancelled At Date of grant Exercise Exercise Share price of
category of 1 April during 31 March of share period of price of the Company
participant 2002 the year 2003 options share options share options at grant date
SEE R-B2ZF R=-BR=F XRFRHORA
£RAER mA-H FREH ZEEZt-B EREBERERE BRETEIR BRETEE RUEAHZKRE
* *% k%%
Other employees:
EfESR -
In aggregate 20-July-1999 21-July-1999
A 13,700,000 (13,700,000) - —NANE —ANE 0.046 0.05
tA=1H +A=t+-H
to
2
16-February-
2008
ZZTN\E
ZAtRE
*  The vesting period of the share options is from the date of the * OBERECEEHAREARAETRBHRFASL R
grant until the commencement of the exercise period. 1E -
*%  The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment O MRS ITALAR S AR A B AR AN 3 A E 4 Ak
in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in HIEAT  BRETEEN THE-
the Company's share capital.
ok o BRERHBAHMARZARAROERDEER

The price of the Company's shares disclosed as at the date of
the grant of the share options is the Stock Exchange closing PRIER B HIAT— AR S AR R 2 K TE -
price on the trading day immediately prior to the date of the

grant of the share options.
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28. RESERVES

(a) Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page
30 of the financial statements.

The Group's contributed surplus originally represents the
difference between the nominal value of the shares of
the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group's
reorganisation on 17 February 1998, over the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange
therefor.

Pursuant to the Capital Reorganisation implemented
during the year, the credits arising from the Capital
Reduction and share premium cancellation and the
amount standing in the contribution surplus account were
applied to eliminate the accumulated losses of the Group.
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28. RESERVES (Continued) 28. f#1E (&)
(b) Company (b) &4 H
Share
premium  Contributed Accumulated
account surplus losses Total
IR 17 % 8 iR BABH 2EER CE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ik FEL FEL FET FEL
At 1 April 2001 RZZET-FHMHA—AH 44,397 68,509 (244,013) (131,107)
Net profit for the year ~ AFE 2 G FFH - - 37,461 37,461
At 31 March and RZZT-_F=A=+—H
1 April 2002 RWA—H 44,397 68,509 (206,552) (93,646)
Shares issued on RBABRER
conversion of a T
convertible note g 26(i) 1,000 - - 1,000
Shares issued on EBEETEHRAM
settlement of certain AN
trade and other T
creditors g 26(v) 342 - - 34)
Share issue expense BROBETER (4,273) - - (4,273)
Share premium R {7 4 (B 7T 4R
cancellation 26(vi)(c) (41,466) 41,466 - -
Elimination of ZREEEME
accumulated losses 26(vi)(e) - (109,975) 215,582 105,607
Net loss AEEZERE
for the year ek - - (49,662) (49,662)
At 31 March 2003 RZZET=F=A=+—H - - (40,632) (40,632)
The contributed surplus of the Company originally represents RAFIZBABKRRIBERE EX QB MiiSEEE
the excess of the then combined net asset value of the HMEBzMBARER CAHEESRE  BE
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group's reorganisation ARARRBZEEEMBETZRAAEZH
referred to in (a) above, over the nominal value of the 7 o

Company's shares issued in exchange therefor.
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29. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(a) Prior year adjustments

SSAP 15 (Revised) was adopted during the current year,
as detailed in note 2 to the financial statements, which
has resulted in a change to the layout of the consolidated
cash flow statement. The consolidated cash flow statement
is now presented under three headings: cash flows from
operating activities, investing activities and financing
activities. Previously five headings were used, comprising
the three headings listed above, together with cash flows
from returns on investments and servicing of finance and
from taxes paid. The significant reclassifications resulting
from the change in presentation are that interest received
is now included in cash flows from investing activities
and interest paid is now included in cash flow from
financing activities. The presentation of the 2002
comparative consolidated cash flow statement has been
changed to accord with the new layout.

Also, the definition of “cash equivalents” under the SSAP
15 (Revised) has been revised as explained under the
heading “Cash and cash equivalents” in note 5 to the
financial statements. This has resulted in trust receipt loans
no longer qualifying as cash equivalents. The amount of
cash equivalents in the consolidated cash flow statement
as at 31 March 2002 has been adjusted to remove trust
receipt loans amounting to HK$72,578,000, previously
included as at that date. The current year's movement in
trust receipt loans is now included in cash flows from
financing activities and the comparative consolidated cash
flow statement has been changed accordingly.
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29. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(Continued)

(b) Major non-cash transactions

The Group had the following major non-cash transactions
during the year:

(i) Join Asia converted in full the convertible note of
HK$3,000,000 issued by the Company at the
conversion price of HK$0.015 per share into
200,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each in the
Company which did not result in any cash flow (note

24(iii)).

(i) Pursuant to the Bank Compromise Agreement, the
Bank Group was issued convertible bonds with an
aggregate principal amount of HK$6,500,000 by the
Company as part of the consideration for releasing
and discharging the Group from all its obligations
and liabilities in respect of the Group's borrowings
advanced by the Bank Group (notes 3(a)(ii) and
24(i)). The issue of these convertible bonds did not
result in any cash flow.

(iii) Pursuant to a compromise agreement between the
Company and the PRC Entity in respect of the
settlement of its claims, the PRC Entity was issued
by the Company a convertible note in the principal
amount of HK$16,000,000 (notes 3(a)(iii) and
24(ii)). The issue of this convertible note did not
result in any cash flow.

29. GERERERME (&)

(b)

TEERERS

F$$FW AREBLETUTEEIRRS

() EDEFR0ISETZ ABREBEHEARRAR]
#17,23,000,0007%8 7T A] AR 2 15 & 2P i
1 4200,000,000% F X EEC.01B T Z
ARRRRY - RINEBRTEELEMEMAE
& 2 (FsE24(i))

(i) REBERTZBHZE  REBAQARET
K& %4 $£ 756,500,000/ 0 2 AT 2 B% (B
5 ERBREFHEAZSERRERSY
FAEBEZBEMEAEZ —EER
BEZBHRE (MEE3@)3I0) %24(1))
BORSETRREFTEEEATAES

==
JLE °

(i) REARRIEABEGERERELBRM
RN EmhE PECEEARARE
IR & % /16,000, ooo;‘%fnzwﬁﬁ&%‘e
& (B 7E3(a) (iii) % 24(ii) ° FEITZEA
}@meflﬁﬁiﬁﬂﬁi\/ﬁi o
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29. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(Continued)

(b) Major non-cash transactions (Continued)

(iv) Pursuant to various compromise agreements entered
into by the Group with certain trade and other
creditors, the Company issued 1,066,440,000 shares
of HK$0.01 each for an aggregate amount of
HK$11,006,000 in respect of the settlement of debts
owed to trade creditors of HK$1,055,000 and other
creditors of HK$9,951,000 (notes 3(a)(iii) and
26(v)). The issue of shares by the Company did
not result in any cash flow.

(v) During the year, the principal amount of the loans
from a director of HK$4,000,000 was assigned to a
shareholder which did not result in any cash flow
(note 35(iii)).

(vi) The Capital Reorganisation as detailed in note 26(vi)
implemented during the year did not result in any
cash flow.

30. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the Group's bank and other borrowings, which are
secured by assets of the Group, are included in notes 15 and
20 to the financial statements.
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—EE=F=ZH=1-H

31. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

32.

The Group leases certain of its office properties under operating
lease arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for a
term of two years.

3. REBFOZH

AEERBERKEHEOLHEEETHLIEDE -
MEEERDERPME -

As at 31 March 2003, the Group had total future minimum RZZEE=F=A=+—8B AEERETAH
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling HEEMA 2 B ZERSEE/NA TR
due as follows: H -
Group
rEE
2003 2002
—ER=H| —TT_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FAT
Within one year —ER 248 398
In the second to fifth years, inclusive HFZZFRF (BREEEMT) - 248
248 646
In addition, pursuant to various agreements entered into BEAN - REBAEBETE  —ZEBEALIE
between the Group and an unrelated party in Mainland China, ZEZEWHE  AEEARASEE TETEASE

the Group is required to pay annual fees of HK$1 18,000 in
respect of certain leasehold land of the Group in Mainland
China, with a carrying value of HK$29,000,000 as at 31 March
2003, commencing from the year 2008 up to the year 2048
with a 20% increment for every five years (note 15).

COMMITMENTS

Neither the Company nor the Group had any significant capital
commitments as at the balance sheet date (2002: Nil).

32.

ZETEHSTNFEE118,0008 7T LN =
TT=F=H=+—HZKMHEEA29000,000%
T MO —EENFRE_TENFL R
F B MN200%(FIFE15) °

AiE
RABRAEBREE BB ETMERE RNEIE
(ZE2EE —F : &) -
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33. PENDING LITIGATIONS

(i) Claims for outstanding trade debts were brought by several
suppliers against HCT during the year in respect of goods
supplied and services provided for, together with interest,
costs and/or other relief, of approximately HK$2,592,000
in aggregate. The Group subsequently filed defences. No
further action has been taken by the suppliers. A full
provision for HK$2,592,000 has been made in these
financial statements.

(i) As at the date of this report, writs of summons had been
issued by other miscellaneous creditors, together with
claims for interest thereon, in respect of purchases of
goods and provision of services, aggregating approximately
HK$1,095,000. A full provision for HK$1,095,000 has
been made in these financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors, adequate provisions have been
made by the Group in respect of all the above claims in the
Group's financial statements as at 31 March 2003.

34. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

(i) On 15 May 2003, the Company settled the first instalment

of the convertible bonds issued to the Bank Group of
approximately HK$2,167,000.

(i) On 15 July 2003, the Company entered into an
underwriting agreement with Kingston Securities Limited
in respect of an open offer with assured allotment of four
offer shares for every one share of HK$0.01 each in the
Company.

The open offer is expected to be completed on 23
September 2003 and will result in the issue of
862,102,552 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in
the Company at a price of HK$0.06 per share based on
the number of issued shares of 215,525,638 as at 31
March 2003. Cash proceeds of approximately
HK$51,726,000, before related open offer expenses, will
be received by the Company (note 4(a)).
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34. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

(iii) Subsequent to the balance sheet date, Vision Century

advanced addition loans of HK$11,000,000 to the Group.
The advance from Vision Century bears interest at the
prime lending rate in Hong Kong plus 3% per annum.

(iv) Subsequent to the balance sheet date, in July 2003, Speed

V)

(vi)

Up has assigned its entire interest in other loans of
HK$20,400,000 together with the accrued interest, which
were advanced to the Group to Vision Century (note

4(b) (D).

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Group agreed
with, or obtained written consent from, certain creditors
to reschedule the repayment terms of the Group's
indebtedness. Further details of such agreements are set
out in note 4(b) to the financial statements.

Pursuant to a board resolution passed by the directors on
16 July 2003, the authorised share capital of the Company
was proposed to be increased from HK$15,000,000 to
HK$100,000,000 by the creation of additional
8,500,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company.

(iv)

V)

(vi)

MEE B & ¢ Vision Century®8 4h im) AN & E 17
t & 11,000,000/ 7T © Vision CenturyFf 2
tZBRRBFEEZBEERNXMIE

o

= %% 2 m

RiEE % » Speed pER—_ZZT=Ft A
1 E R F R & B 2 20,400,0007 7T £ fth &
X [ JE &1 A B 2 & &f ## % 88 & T Vision
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

0)

(it)

(iii)

(v)

During the vyear, Vision Century subscribed for
3,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the
Company pursuant to a subscription agreement dated 1
February 2002 entered into with the Company. Further
details of the share subscription are set out in note 3(a)(i).

The Company entered into an underwriting agreement
with Vision Century on 1 February 2002 in respect of
underwriting an aggregate of 4,025,905,140 shares by
Vision Century under an open offer with assumed
allotment of three offer shares for every two shares of
HK$0.01 each in the Company. The open offer completed
on 29 May 2002 and resulted in the issuance of
2,300,299,500 shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company
to Vision Century.

Mr. Lo Ming Chi (“Mr. Lo"), a director of the Company,
advanced loans of HK$4,000,000 (2002: HK$7,000,000)
to the Group during the year. The loans were unsecured,
bore interest at the prime lending rate in Hong Kong plus
3% per annum and were repayable on demand. During
the year, the loans advanced from Mr. Lo were assigned
in full to Vision Century (note 29(b)(v)). Accordingly, the
outstanding balance of the loans advanced by Mr. Lo was
nil as at 31 March 2003. The interest expenses incurred
by the Group during the year in respect of the loans from
Mr. Lo amounted to HK$415,000.

Vision Century advanced loans of HK$8,000,000 (2002:
Nil) to the Group during the year. The loans are unsecured,
bear interest at the prime lending rate in Hong Kong plus
3% per annum and are repayable on demand. Together
with the loans assigned from Mr. Lo as mentioned in (iii)
above to Vision Century, the Group owed Vision Century
HK$12,000,000 in aggregate as at 31 March 2003 (2002:
Nil). The interest expenses incurred by the Group during
the year in respect of the loans from Vision Century
amounted to HK$127,000.
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 5. BAEALRE (&)

(v) Get Start Holdings Limited, the former immediate holding (v) Vision Centuryd] £ B & = ik 2 7] Get Start
company of Vision Century, had undertaken to the Holdings LimitedBEMA R A& - EBEZ
Company, during the period up to 31 May 2003, to TTE=-FRA=-T—BILZHHE BEEH
provide continuing financial support to the Group so as TASEMRXE NWEAEEEERHERK
to enable the Group to continue its day-to-day operations FABRZMBEER DA RSELCEEE
as a viable going concern notwithstanding any present or EEEBREEERWATZHEEE -

future financial difficulties experienced by the Group.

36. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS 36. kBB F
As further explained in note 2 to the financial statements, due ANB RS R R s 2 AT EFal - AEAFEHRME T
to the adoption of certain new and revised SSAPs during the el MBS ERER - BKBERANE THE
current year, the accounting treatment and presentation of BRAEMREBIEHER  AREaHRE - Bk &
certain items and balances in the financial statements have THRBFETUEINARKRER 7 2 MR —
been revised to comply with the new requirements. Accordingly, B o

certain comparative amounts have been restated to conform
with the current year's presentation.

37. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 37. #EMBREK
The financial statements were approved and authorised for EEERN_TTE=FtA-_ T OB ERTER
issue by the board of directors on 24 July 2003. =W KT o

@ ANNUAL REPORT 2003 F#



